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Dear Mr. Kady: 

The Department of Environmental Protection ("MassDEP') has reviewed your application for 
Water Quality Certification ("WQC'), as referenced above. In accordance with the provisions of 
MGL c.21, $6 26-53 and Section 401 of the Federal Clean Water Act as amended (33 U.S.C. $1251 
et g.), and 314 CMR 9.00, it has been determined there is reasonable assurance the project or - 
activity will be conducted in a manner which will not violate applicable water quality standards at 
3 14 CMR 4.00. 

The project site comprises approximately 21 5 acres of land located off of Howe Street in Methuen 
and abutting the Haverhill city line. Hawkes Brook and tributaries flow toward the Merrimack River 
adjacent to and through portions of the site. 

The current proposal for the site subject to this review is for construction of an 18-hole golf course, 
75 residential units, clubhouse, and associated infrastructure. The project involves the 
fillinglalteration of 20,888 square feet ("sf') of federally delineated wetlands and Waters of the 
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Commonwealth. Permanent alteration of 16,5 14 square feet will be mitigated through replication 
of 24,742 sf and temporary alteration of 4,372 sf will be restored in-situ. 

From a time prior to the application for WQC being filed, MassDEP staff have met with the 
development team to discuss alternative project designs, mitigation, and other issues of concern. 
The project has since been significantly re-designed to address MassDEP's concerns. These include 
clustering of some housing units, reconfiguration of golf holes, reduction in number and cutting 
height of view corridors, relocation of road crossings, and the addition of more buffer area and 
supplementary plantings, all resulting in avoidance or reduction of impacts to wetlands and Waters 
of the Commonwealth. 

Based on the current record and MassDEP's familiarity with the site, MassDEP determines that the 
project meets the criteria of 314 CMR 9.06 and grants a Water Quality Certification subject to the 
following conditions to maintain water quality, to minimize impact on waters and wetlands, and to 
ensure compliance with appropriate state law: 

1. This project could result in a violation of water quality standards adopted by MassDEP 
Division of Water Pollution Control. Therefore, reasonable care and diligence shall be 
taken by the contractor to assure that the proposed activity will not violate Class B criteria 
(3 14 CMR 4.05 (3)(b) and (5)). 

2. All work shall conform to the Order of Conditions (DEP File #219-0967) issued by the 
Methuen Conservation Commission pursuant to the Massachusetts Wetland Protection Act 
(M.G.L. Chapter 131, section 40) on April 20,2006, including all plans, documents and 
special conditions comprehensively listed therein, unless otherwise specified in writing by 
MassDEP. 

3. This project shall be constructed and monitored according to the document referenced in 
the Order of Conditions titled Wetland Mitigation Program Emerald Pines - Phase 2, 
Howe Street, Methuen, Massachusetts, prepared by Wetlands Preservation, Inc., dated 
July 25,2005, as modified by: 

a) Prior to the start of construction, the applicant shall hire an Environmental Monitor 
(EM) who shall report to MassDEP, Conservation Commission and the applicant. The 
individual or firm shall have a minimum of five (5) years experience in wetland 
replicationlrestoration, erosion and sedimentation control practices and wildlife habitat 
evaluations, and shall have experience in general construction practices 

b) The EM shall verify the placement and performance of erosion control measures and 
shall have the authority to halt construction for erosion control purposes. 

c) The EM shall be responsible for overseeing the construction of wetland replication and 
restoration areas. In addition to the tasks described in the Program report referenced 
above, the EM shall review all aspects of field work which may have an adverse impact 
on aquatic resources, including, but not limited to: erosion control; cofferdam installation 
and removal; dewatering activities; and shall oversee all activities involving both state 














